
VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE / TOWN OF WESTPORT
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION

**Virtual Meeting Via Zoom Webinar**
May12, 2020 6:00 PM

Agendas may change prior to the commencement of the meeting. Please check the posting board 
at the Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street, Waunakee, Wisconsin for the current agenda.

CONNECTION INSTRUCTIONS
This Village of Waunakee Plan Commission Meeting will be held as a live virtual meeting due to 

the State of Wisconsin’s Safer At Home Order. The public can participate in one of four ways: 

 PREFERRED METHOD: Participate on-line in Zoom webinar by using this link to join: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83762683363 via computer, tablet, or smart phone will allow 
participation. 
 CALL: (312) 626-6799, and enter Webinar ID: 837 626 83363. Those requiring toll-free 
options are asked to contact Village Hall for details prior to the meeting at 
administrator@waunakee.com or (608)850-2182. 
 WATCH LIVE on the Village’s Facebook page: 
https://www.facebook.com/villageofwaunakee/. The on-line meeting agenda and all support 
materials can be found at https://onbase.waunakee.com/onbaseagendaonline . In addition to the 
public, all Commission members and staff will also be participating remotely. An explanation on 
how the meeting will be conducted will occur promptly at 6:00 PM. Anyone with questions prior 
to the meeting may contact the Village at (608)850-2182 or administrator@waunakee.com. 

PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
 WRITTEN COMMENTS: You can send comments to the Plan Commission on any matter, 

either on or not on the agenda, by emailing tmeinholz@waunakee.com or in writing to Plan 
Commission, 500 W Main St., Waunakee, WI, 53597. While Commission meetings are being 
run virtually, the typical “Public Comments” section that occurs at the beginning of in-person 

meetings will not occur. 

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL:  Ken Sipsma, Dean Grosskopf, Eileen Bruskewitz, Brad Zeman, Brian 
Malich, Brian Wallace

1 of 65

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83762683363
https://onbase.waunakee.com/onbaseagendaonline
mailto:administrator@waunakee.com


MINUTES

1 March 10, 2020

NEW BUSINESS

1 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of Certified 
Survey Map and Rezone from A-1 Agricultural Holding to C-1 Commercial 
for a Proposed Kwik Trip, at the northwest corner of Peaceful Valley 
Parkway and S. Century Avenue/CTH Q

2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of Site Plan, 
and Conditional Use Permit, Kwik Trip Inc., for a convenience store with 
fuel pumps and carwash, northwest corner of Peaceful Valley Pkwy. and S. 
Century Ave./CTH Q

ADJOURN

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the 
meeting to be in an accessible location or format should contact the municipal clerk at (608) 850-8500, 500 West Main Street, Waunakee, 
Wisconsin, at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to 
accommodate each request.

VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
TOWN OF WESTPORT BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission may attend this meeting. No action will be 
taken by the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission at this meeting.

Next scheduled meeting is 6/9/2020 6:00:00 PM.

2 of 65



VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE/TOWN OF WESTPORT 
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Town of Westport Community Room 
5387 Mary Lake Road, Town of Westport 

March 10, 2020 6:00 PM 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:07 p.m. by Brad Zeman acting as Chair in the absence of Ken 
Sipsma.  
 
 
ROLL CALL:   
Present:  Ken Sipsma (at 6:12 p.m.), Dean Grosskopf, Brad Zeman, Brian Malich, Brian Wallace 
Absent:  Eileen Bruskewitz 
Also Present: Jim Budeau, Gary Napralla, Tom Wilson, and Kevin Even 
 
Roll called by Kevin Even. 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
1 February 11, 2020 
Motion Brian Wallace, second by Dean Grosskopf, to approve the minutes from the February 11, 2020 
Joint Plan Commission meeting as presented. Motion carried. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
1 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action, Rezone (County R-1 to Village R-1) to Adjust 
Rear Setback for Addition, Budeau, 6091 Imperial Dr., Town of Westport 
 
The Public Hearing was opened by Chair Zeman at 6:08 p.m.  Wilson presented on the proposal.  No 
further comments were made and Chair Zeman closed the public hearing at 6:12 p.m. after asking for 
comments three times without reply. After discussion, motion Dean Grosskopf, second Ken Sipsma to 
recommend approval of the Budeau rezone of 6091 Imperial Drive to Village R-1 as presented, but 
keep all of the current setbacks except for the rear yard which shall comply with the Village R-1 
classification requirements, consistent with the Westport Plan Commission recommendation. 
 
 
2 Discuss and Take Action on Certified Survey Map, Napralla, 5531 Sunset Trail, Town of 
Westport 
  

3 of 65



After a presentation by Wilson, comments by the applicant especially as to home location, and 
discussion, motion Ken Sipsma, second Brian Wallace to recommend approval of the Napralla CSM 
for 5531 Sunset Trail as presented with standard Town conditions and restrictions consistent with the 
Westport Plan Commission recommendation, with the additional restriction that the home shall be 
located from the road consistent with the other homes on the block and as approved by the Town 
Administrator prior to construction commencing. 
 
3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action for Certified Survey Map, Rezone, Site Plan and 
Conditional Use Permit for Kwik Trip LLC to Construct a Convenience Store with Fueling 
Canopy at CTH Q Across from Peaceful Valley Parkway 
The applicant asked to be removed from the agenda, so no discussion or action was taken. 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion Ken Sipsma, second Brian Malich to adjourn the meeting at 6:26 p.m.  Motion carried. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
Tracy Meinholz, Joint Plan Commission Secretary 

4 of 65



SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 05/12/20

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING

TITLE: Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of a Certified Survey Map and 
Rezone from A-1 Agricultural Holding to C-1 Commercial for the Proposed Kwik Trip, at the northwest 
corner of Peaceful Valley Parkway and S. Century Avenue/County Highway Q

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Attached is the CSM and rezone for the proposed Kwik Trip. Staff is 
recommending that the parcel be deed restricted for the convenience store, car wash and fueling 
station only.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Village Board approval with conditions.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

Motion to recommend to the Village Board that it approve the certified survey map, subject to final 
review and approval by the Village Engineer and incorporation of all Village staff comments.

Motion to recommend to the Village Board that it rezone the lot to be purchased by Kwik Trip from A-
1 Agricultural/Holding District to the C-1 General Commercial District, with the attached deed 
restrictions to be recorded on the lot.

ATTACHMENT(S): CSM & Rezone Request, Deed Restriction, Staff Comments

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

5 of 65

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


1

DEED RESTRICTION

THIS DEED RESTRICTION is made as of this 
___ day of __________, 2020, by Kwik Trip, Inc., a 
Wisconsin corporation (the “Owner”).

RECITALS

A. The Owner owns, or has a right to acquire, Lot 
__ of Certified Survey Map No. ______, 
recorded on the _____ day of __________, 
_____, in Volume ___ of Dane County Certified 
Survey Maps, pages ____ to ____, as Document 
No. ________, in the Village of Waunakee, 
Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”).

B. The Owner obtained a conditional use permit 
from the Village of Waunakee / Town of 
Westport Joint Plan Commission, conditioned upon the Village of 
Waunakee (the “Village”) approving the re-zoning of the Property from the 
A-1 Agricultural/Holding District to the C-1 General Commercial District.

C. The re-zoning of the Property was conditioned upon this Deed Restriction 
being executed and recorded by the Owner. 

D. The Village’s purpose for re-zoning the Property subject to this Deed 
Restriction is to place the Property in the same position it otherwise would 
have been pursuant to a general development plan previously conditionally 
approved for the Property and adjacent properties.  

E. Pursuant to the 2017 Waunakee/Westport Joint Comprehensive Plan, the 
Property is designated for Commercial use and adjacent properties are 
designated for Commercial use and Mixed Use. 

F. The specific uses for the adjacent properties are not yet known.  However, 
the Village finds that it is in the public interest to allow the Property to be 
rezoned from A-1 Agricultural/Holding District to the C-1 General 
Commercial District, subject to this Deed Restriction, because the 
permitted and conditional uses identified in this Deed Restriction for the 
Property will be compatible with any commercial or mixed uses on the 
adjacent properties.  

THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA

RETURN TO:

Village of Waunakee
Attn: Village Clerk
500 W. Main Street
Waunakee, WI 53597 
 P.I.N.

6 of 65



2

G. The Owner now wishes to execute this Deed Restriction for the Property 
for the benefit of the Owner and the Village.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, including consideration of the 
mutual benefits passing to and from the Owner and those who may thereafter 
purchase the Property, the Owner declares as follows:

1. During the term of this Deed Restriction, the permitted use for the Property 
shall be restricted to an automotive accessory store, and the conditional 
uses for the Property shall be restricted to a convenience store, including 
car washes, fueling stations for gasoline, diesel, ethanol or alternative fuels, 
and outdoor display and sale of merchandise approved by the Village 
Engineer, pursuant to Sections 133-524 and 133-525 of the Village Code. 

2. During the term of this Deed Restriction, there shall be no other permitted 
or conditional uses for the Property. 

3. If the Owner seeks to use the Property for a use not specifically identified 
in Section 1 above, the Owner must seek and obtain an amendment to this 
Deed Restriction from the Village pursuant to Section 6 below.

4. This Deed Restriction shall constitute a covenant running with the land and 
shall be binding upon all parties now owning any part of the Property, their 
successors, heirs and assigns, and all parties holding under them unless 
such restriction is amended or terminated as set forth below.  The Owner 
represents and warrants that it is the sole record title owner of the Property 
and that the Property is subject to a mortgage.  The Deed Restriction shall 
not be recorded until __________________ executes a Consent of 
Lienholder and Mortgage Subordination in a form approved by the Village.  

5. This Deed Restriction shall be enforceable at law or in equity by the 
Village against the Owner or against any party who thereafter acquires an 
interest in the Property.  In the event the Village takes action to enforce the 
terms of this Deed Restriction, the Village shall be entitled to recover its 
actual costs and expenses, including any attorneys’ fees.

6. The restrictions provided for herein shall not be amended without the prior 
written consent of the Village.

7 of 65



3

7. The initial term of this Deed Restriction shall begin on the date the Deed 
Restriction is executed and recorded by the Owner; shall continue for 30 
years thereafter unless terminated sooner; and shall automatically renew for 
successive 30-year periods unless it is terminated by the VIllage.

8. This Deed Restriction shall be recorded and re-recorded with the Dane 
County Register of Deeds Office.

9. If any part of this Deed Restriction is determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the rest of the Deed Restriction shall remain in effect.  
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Owner agrees and 
acknowledges that the Village of Waunakee, in its sole discretion, had the 
authority to deny the Owner’s re-zoning application and that the execution 
and recording of this Deed Restriction by the Owner was critical to the 
Village’s decision to approve the re-zoning.  Therefore, if the restrictions 
contained in Section 1 are determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the re-
zoning shall be deemed invalid because the condition of the re-zoning will 
no longer be satisfied. 

10. The Owner has the full power and authority to execute this Deed 
Restriction.  The individual(s) signing below for the Owner warrant that 
he/she has full power and authority to execute this Deed Restriction on 
behalf of the Owner, and to bind the Owner to this Deed Restriction. 

11. No waiver of any breach of this Deed Restriction shall be deemed a 
continuing waiver of that breach or a waiver of any other breach of this 
Deed Restriction.

12. This Deed Restriction has been negotiated and signed in the State of 
Wisconsin and shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin.

13. The representations and recitations set forth in Recitals are material to this 
Deed Restriction and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this 
Deed Restriction as though they were fully set forth in this paragraph, 
subject to all of the terms and conditions in the balance of this Deed 
Restriction.  

[Signature page follows]

8 of 65



4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner has executed this Deed Restriction 
as of the year and date first written above.

OWNER:
[INSERT NAME]

By: __________________________
Name:__________________________
Title: __________________________

STATE OF WISCONSIN

COUNTY OF ___________

Personally came before me, this ___ day of ___________, _____, the above-
named _____________________, known to me to be the person who executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Print name: ____________________
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My Commission

This instrument was drafted by:
Bryan Kleinmaier
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI  53701-1784 

9 of 65



10 of 65



11 of 65



12 of 65



13 of 65



14 of 65



15 of 65



16 of 65



17 of 65



18 of 65



19 of 65



20 of 65



21 of 65



22 of 65



23 of 65



24 of 65



25 of 65



26 of 65



27 of 65



28 of 65



29 of 65



30 of 65



31 of 65



32 of 65



20'

B

B

B

B
B

B

30
'

B

B

R
Y
G

17

R
Y
G

13

R
Y
G

18

R Y G1

R
Y
G

15
88

RYFY 10
RYG 7

RYG 8

87

R Y FY4
RYG 6

RYFY 9

R Y FY5

R Y G2
R Y G3

R
Y
G

14

R
Y
G

19

RYG

12

RYG

11

R
Y
G

16

86

85

83

84

30'

 2
1 

A
pr

 2
02

0 
- 1

:5
4p

   
  G

:\
V

ie
rb

ic
he

r\
19

10
5-

00
0 

Ki
lk

en
ny

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ra

ffi
c 

Si
gn

al
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\S
he

et
sP

la
n\

02
40

01
-s

r.d
w

g 
   

 b
y:

 K
W

eh
ne

r
20

19
 V

ie
rb

ic
he

r A
ss

oc
ia

te
s, 

In
c.

c

PROJECT NO.

DRAFTER

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE

CHECKED

DATE

SCALE

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE
vi

e
rb

ic
he

r
Ph

on
e:

  (
80

0)
 2

61
-3

89
8

p
la

n
n

e
rs

  
 e

n
g

in
e

e
rs

  
 a

d
v

is
o

rs

TR
A

FF
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L 
RE

M
O

V
A

L 
PL

A
N

Ki
lk

en
ny

 W
es

t -
 P

ha
se

 1
 

V
illa

ge
 o

f W
au

na
ke

e
D

an
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 W
isc

on
sin

C

21

GYRXX

(XX)
B

*

XX

RYG 6

ø2

ø6

ø
4

ø
8

(XX)

33 of 65



B

B

B

B
B

30
'

30'

B

RYFY 10
RYG 7

RYG 8

87

R Y FY4
RYG 6

RYFY 9

R Y FY5

R Y G2
R Y G3

RYG

12

RYG

11

R
Y
G

16

86

85

83

84

30'

OH
OH

B

R
Y
G

17

R
Y
G

13

R
Y
G

18 88

R
Y
G

14

R
Y
G

19

B

20'

R
Y
G

15

R Y G1

 2
1 

A
pr

 2
02

0 
- 2

:0
4p

   
  G

:\
V

ie
rb

ic
he

r\
19

10
5-

00
0 

Ki
lk

en
ny

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ra

ffi
c 

Si
gn

al
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\S
he

et
sP

la
n\

Te
m

p 
Si

gn
al

s.d
w

g 
   

 b
y:

 K
W

eh
ne

r
20

19
 V

ie
rb

ic
he

r A
ss

oc
ia

te
s, 

In
c.

c

PROJECT NO.

DRAFTER

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE

CHECKED

DATE

SCALE

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE
vi

e
rb

ic
he

r
Ph

on
e:

  (
80

0)
 2

61
-3

89
8

p
la

n
n

e
rs

  
 e

n
g

in
e

e
rs

  
 a

d
v

is
o

rs

TE
M

PO
RA

RY
 T

RA
FF

IC
 S

IG
N

A
L 

PL
A

N
Ki

lk
en

ny
 W

es
t -

 P
ha

se
 1

 
V

illa
ge

 o
f W

au
na

ke
e

D
an

e 
C

ou
nt

y,
 W

isc
on

sin

C

22

GYRXX
(XX)

B

*

XX

ø2

ø6

ø
4

ø
8

34 of 65



B

B

B

B
B

30
'

30'

B

 2
1 

A
pr

 2
02

0 
- 2

:3
6p

   
  G

:\
V

ie
rb

ic
he

r\
19

10
5-

00
0 

Ki
lk

en
ny

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ra

ffi
c 

Si
gn

al
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
\C

IV
IL

 3
D

\S
he

et
sP

la
n\

02
42

01
-s

p.
d

w
g 

   
 b

y:
 K

W
eh

ne
r

20
19

 V
ie

rb
ic

he
r A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.
c

PROJECT NO.

DRAFTER

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE

CHECKED

DATE

SCALE

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

RE
M

A
RK

S
N

O
.

D
A

TE
vi

e
rb

ic
he

r
Ph

on
e:

  (
80

0)
 2

61
-3

89
8

p
la

n
n

e
rs

  
 e

n
g

in
e

e
rs

  
 a

d
v

is
o

rs

TR
A

FF
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L 
PL

A
N

Ki
lk

en
ny

 W
es

t -
 P

ha
se

 1
 

V
illa

ge
 o

f W
au

na
ke

e
D

an
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 W
isc

on
sin

C

23

GYRXX

(XX)
B

*

XX

ø2

ø6

ø
8

(XX)

ø
4

35 of 65



36 of 65



37 of 65



38 of 65



SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 05/12/2020 

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING

TITLE: Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of Site Plan, and Conditional 
Use Permit, Kwik Trip Inc., for a convenience store with fuel pumps and carwash, northwest corner of 
Peaceful Valley Pkwy. and S. Century Ave./CTH Q

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Attached is the site plan and CU (car wash) for the proposed Kwik Trip.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Joint Plan Commission approval with conditions.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

Motion to approve the site plan, subject to final review and approval by the Village Engineer, 
incorporation of all Village staff comments and conditioned upon Village Board approval of the 
associated certified survey map, rezoning request, and deed restriction.

Motion to approve the conditional use permit, conditioned upon Village Board approval of the 
associated certified survey map, rezoning request, and deed restriction.

ATTACHMENT(S): Site Plan and CUP Application, Staff Comments

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

39 of 65

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


Waunakee Kwik Trip 1094 
Review Comment with Responses

1. The two driveways on Winn Drive are very close and could cause confusion as to which driveway
 is going to be used. One of the Winn Drive driveways should be removed and replaced with one
 on Tullamore Street. Furthermore, the westerly driveway appears to be too close to the interse
ction of Tullamore St. and Winn Drive. The location of the remaining driveway off Winn Drive sh
ould be coordinated to align with the proposed driveway on the south side of Winn Drive shown
 on the Kilkenny West ‐ Phase I plans for Winn Drive.  
The driveways have been reconfigured to avoid the conflicts with the corner.  Please see the 
updated plans. 

2. The driveways should be constructed with traditional aprons and sidewalks, similar to the 
current Kwik Trip in downtown. The present design is not appropriate for an urban location with
 pedestrians and sidewalks. 
The driveway aprons have been revised

3. The stormwater report indicates that 67.7% of the predeveloped stayon infiltration depth will b
e provided to meet a 60% requirement. Dane County stormwater code requires that a 90% 
predeveloped stay‐on depth. 
In conversations with the WISDNR they will only allow water from the roof and canopy areas 
to be infiltrated to avoid groundwater contamination.  We have a separate piping system that 
takes the rooftop water from the storm and canopy directly to the infiltration basin.  Using 
this area only, we get over 95% infiltration.  Please see the report for more information. 

4. 3:1 side slopes are indicated for the detention basins and the slopes along the north side of the s
ite. 4:1 maximum side slopes should be maintained. 
Based on the site layout and existing topography; to meet the TSS reduction requirements 3:1 
slopes had to be used for the wet basin.  The basin could not get large enough using 4:1 
slopes. 

5. Given that the overland flood route near Inlet‐1 and Inlet 4
 are not directed to the detention basins, the storm sewers will need to be sized to handle a 100‐ye
ar storm event. In lieu of this, the site would need to be regraded to direct the overland flood route
s to the detention basins. 
Pipes have been upsized to carry the 100-year storm event.

6. The pond outlet control structure detail on Sheet SP 3.1 indicates the downstream storm sewer 
is 18‐inch pipe, while the storm sewer plan (Sheet SP 3.0) indicates 12‐inch diameter pipe. 
This has been revised so both items are correct.

7. It is suggested that roof drainage from the site be piped directly to the infiltration basin. 
The water from the roof and canopy are piped directly to the infiltration basin.

8. The emergency spillway from the infiltration basin and between the wet basin and infiltration ba
sin should be stabilized with permanent turf reinforcement mat (TRM). 

40 of 65



Waunakee Kwik Trip 1094 
Review Comment with Responses

This spillway has been removed and all other spillways will be stabilized with (TRM).

9. The routing of the sewer and water service laterals does not seem efficient. It is suggested that t
he water service be extended off the existing water main along the west side of CTH Q or to exte
nd off the water main from Winn 
We have rerouted the sewer and water, please see the attached plans. 

10. Drive further to the east such that the service may run along the east side of the building. Note t
hat the current alignment of the water service appears to be ~10’ from the proposed gas tanks. 
WDNR requires that a 25’ setback from gas tanks be maintained. Also is recommended that an a
lternative route for the sanitary service be considered that avoids multiple bends and a direct co
nnection to the sanitary manhole located at the intersection of Winn Drive and Tullamore St. 
 We have rerouted the water lateral, please see the attached plans. 

11. Railing should be placed along the top of the proposed retaining wall. 
The lot grading by the developer has changed, the retaining wall was removed. 

12. The applicant is prohibited from placing any signs or other permanent structures in 
easement areas. 

  Location as is ok as the site is on the west side of Hwy Q. 

13. I recommend the use of existing street names to avoid confusion. 
The street names have been changed to match the existing names.  

14. Extend an internal sidewalk from the building to Peaceful Valley Parkway 
A sidewalk has been extended to the multi-use path, please see the updated plans. 

15. Relocate the west driveway entrance.  It is too close to the corner. 
The driveways have been reconfigured to avoid the conflicts with the corner.  Please see the 
updated plans. 

16. The monument sign along Hwy Q is inconsistent with recent precedent in the Hwy Q corridor.  It 
should be moved further back along Peaceful Valley Parkway, closer to the driveway entrance to 
the site. 
Location as is ok as the site is on the west side of Hwy Q

17. Reduce lighting levels under the canopy to be no greater than those in use for existing gas 
canopies in the Village. 
The light levels will be adjusted to match those that already exist in the Village.

 

41 of 65



 
1702 PANKRATZ STREET, MADISON, WI 53704 

P (608) 242-7779    TF (800) 446-0679    F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\Kwik Trip\MSA Kilkenny West Kwik Trip Memo 2020_5_1_.docx 

 

Memo 

To: Village of Waunakee Plan Commission 

From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: Kilkenny West CSM, Rezone, Site Plan Review for Kwik Trip Site 

 Date: May 1, 2020 

Request 

Applicant (Kilkenny Farms West, LLC) is requesting approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM), rezone from 
A1 to commercial zoning, conditional use permit, and site plan, for 2.483 acres at the northwest corner of 
Highway Q and Peaceful Valley Parkway.  The CSM also includes 1.573 acres of new right-of-way for the 
extension of Peaceful Valley Parkway and a new street parallel to Highway Q. 

 
Background Information 

This site is part of a larger area for which development is planned and the Urban Service Area (USA) 
amendment has already been approved.  The USA amendment approved by the Capitol Area Regional 
Plan Commission (CARPC) included a neighborhood plan that roughly corresponds to the Village/Town 
Future Land Use Map.  The commercial/mixed use portion of that area was approved by the Village and 
Joint Planning commission for a planned unit development (PUD zoning) in 2019, though that approval 
was contingent on a developer’s agreement that was not completed before the Festival Foods proposal 
died.  The PUD zoning for this site would have allowed for a “convenience grocery store” of up to 11,000 
SF with other approved uses in that building to include a drive-up window, car wash, fueling station, and 
outdoor sales and merchandise display. It would have allowed for 
setbacks of 10 feet on all sides. 

Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

The proposed zoning is subject to the zoning ordinance, 
specifically the policies of the requested C-1 district.  The proposed 
CSM is subject to the subdivision ordinance. 
 
Consistency with the Village Comprehensive Plan 

The Comprehensive Plan (excerpt of the Future Land Use Map at 
right) identifies this site as appropriate for commercial use (in red).  

42 of 65



Kilkenny West CSM, Rezone, Site Plan Review 
May 1, 2020  
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\Kwik 
Trip\MSA Kilkenny West Kwik Trip Memo 2020_5_1_.docx 

Analysis and Recommendations 

Zoning 

Commercial zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   

The proposed zoning is C-1.  The C-1 setbacks are 15 feet in the front yard, 25 feet in the rear yard, and 9 
feet in the side yards.  Gas stations, convenience stores and car washes are all conditional uses in C-1.  

The proposed site plan indicates deep setbacks, including about 94 feet from Peaceful Valley Parkway and 
over 100’ from Hwy Q. 

 I recommend that the Village approve C-1 zoning and a conditional use permit for the proposed 
uses (see my later note regarding exterior lighting). 

Land Division 

The proposed site meets the size and width requirements of C-1 zoning.   

The April 22 CSM proposes a new street name for the north-south road: “Winn Drive”.  This new road may 
extend to Woodland Drive, and if it does it will need to align with either Sausalito Drive or, more likely, S. 
Holiday Drive, and should use the name of the street to which it connects.    

 I recommend that CSM approval should be contingent on staff review of a concept plan for 
development of the lands to the north and west of the current CSM showing how this road will or 
will not connect to the existing street network 

 
Site Plan, Building Design, Signage, Lighting 

Pedestrian Pathways 
 Add a sidewalk or multiuse path along the Hwy Q frontage, as required by Sec. 129-150 
 I recommend that Instead of a single curb ramp at the corner of Peaceful Valley Parkway and S. 

Holiday Drive, provide two – one to the south and one to the west (the single “Type One” ramp is 
allowable under ADA, but the “Type Two” dual ramps is preferred for pedestrian visibility and 
safety, which the developer has highlighted as a priority at this site). 

 
Building and Canopy Design 

 The simplified canopy coloring and design is generally acceptable.  I recommend changing the 
color of the canopy and support posts to match the cream color of the façade under each of the 
roof gables. 

 
Signage  
The building has a total of 114 SF of signage (including directional signs).  The fuel canopy has 27 SF of 
signage.  The total signage is 141 SF and is within the 150 SF limit for building signage. 
The ground sign along Hwy Q is consistent with recent precedent for gas stations in the Hwy Q corridor, 
including the substantial setback from the highway right-of-way (~70’).  Per Sec. 133-1033, ground signs 
for buildings of this size are limited to 64 SF per side and 10 feet in height measured from the street 
centerline.  The area of the sign itself is just within the limit.  The height of the sign structure is exactly 10 
feet above grade at the sign, but that elevation is believed to be higher than the adjacent road centerline. 

 Confirm the elevation of the sign base and the elevation of the road centerline of Peaceful Valley 
Parkway nearest the location of the proposed sign, and adjust the sign to meet the height limit. 

43 of 65



Kilkenny West CSM, Rezone, Site Plan Review 
May 1, 2020  
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Kilkenny Farms West\Kwik 
Trip\MSA Kilkenny West Kwik Trip Memo 2020_5_1_.docx 

Exterior Lighting  
 I recommend language in the Conditional Use Permit that lighting levels under the canopy will be 

no greater than those in use for currently existing gas canopies in the Village. 
 
Parking 
The building is 9,208 SF (gross); based on an assumption of 80% of that as customer sales space (7,366 
SF), the site requires 37 parking stalls (1 per 200 SF).  The site plan indicates 26 parking spaces, plus 2 ADA 
stalls, plus 20 spaces next to fuel pumps.  The unmarked spaces under the canopy are adequate to make 
up for the deficit in marked spaces. 
 
Landscaping 
I did not complete a detailed review of the planting plan, but the number, type and location of proposed 
plantings appear to exceed the requirements of the ordinance.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Planner  

 

44 of 65



Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–The driveways have been reconfigured to avoid the conflicts 
with the corner. Please see the updated plans. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–The driveway aprons have been revised. 

45 of 65



Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–In conversations with the WISDNR they will only allow water 
from the roof and canopy areas to be infiltrated to avoid groundwater contamination. We have 
a separate piping system that takes the rooftop water from the storm and canopy directly to the 
infiltration basin. Using this area only, we get over 95% infiltration. Please see the report for 
more information. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–Based on the site layout and existing topography; to meet the 
TSS reduction requirements 3:1 slopes had to be used for the wet basin. The basin could not get 
large enough using 4:1 slopes. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–Pipes have been upsized to carry the 100-year storm event. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–This has been revised so both items are correct. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–The water from the roof and canopy are piped directly to the 
infiltration basin. 

46 of 65



Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–This spillway has been removed and all other spillways will 
be stabilized with (TRM). 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–We have rerouted the sewer and water, please see the attached 
plans. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–We have rerouted the water lateral, please see the attached 
plans.

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–The lot grading by the developer has changed, the retaining 
wall was removed. 

Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–A sidewalk has been extended to the multi-use path, please 
see the updated plans. 

47 of 65



Snyder’s April 23, 2020 response–No response provided. 

48 of 65



49 of 65



 

322 Moravian Valley Road, PO Box 70, Waunakee, WI 53597 
(608) 849-8111, Fax (608) 849-4109, www.waunakeeutilities.com 

 

 

 

To: Kevin Even 
 Tracy Meinholz 
From: Randy Dorn 

Dave Dresen 
 Tim Herlitzka 
RE: Kwik Trip Submittal 
Date: March 2, 2020 
 

This memo provides comments for the Kwik Trip – Kilkenny Farms West submittal.  
 

 The applicant is prohibited from placing any signs or other permanent structures in 
easement areas. 
  

Comments for the Developer of the Area 
 
We have concerns about the current plan to extend water to the site.  The latest plans we’ve seen 
show water being extended to the site coming south, along the west side of Highway Q, from an 
area where water has been extended from the future Sarah Lane.   
 
The proposed water main will be located near underground electric lines and constructed in an 
area where future grading could cause it to be buried deeper than we would prefer.  Also, future 
maintenance on this main could pose safety concerns for our staff having to work in the road 
right-of-way. 
 
We would prefer a route that would extend the Sarah Lane water main to the west to the future 
extension of South Holiday Drive (currently labeled as Tullamore Street), then south to the Kwik 
Trip site.   
 
We have met with the engineer for the developer and he is aware of these concerns. 
 
Also, we understand the funeral home receives water from a well.  We suggest the funeral home 
be approached about the opportunity to connect to the municipal water supply that will now be 
extended near the property.  A sanitary sewer main borders the funeral home.  A connection to 
the sanitary sewer would likely require fees to be paid to MMSD. 
 

 

50 of 65



1

Tracy Meinholz

From: Brian Adler <waunakeefire@tds.net>
Sent: February 27, 2020 7:45 AM
To: Tracy Meinholz
Subject: Comments from the 2/26/20 Tech Staff Meeting

Tracy, 
 
While reviewing the Kwik Trip for Kilkenny Farms West development, we noticed that the street names had been 
changed since we reviewed the Festival Foods proposal. We believe that it was agreed that the Peaceful Valley Parkway 
would continue on the west side of Century Avenue and it would become Holiday Drive when it curves to the north and 
meets up with the existing Holiday Drive. Kwik Trip’s site plan has these roads named as Winn Drive & Tullimore Street. 
This is very confusing for the emergency services and would prefer the streets share the same name as the streets they 
meet up with.  
 
Thanks! 
 
Brian 

51 of 65



April 21, 2020 
 
Village of Waunakee 
Tracy Meinholz 
500 W. Main St 
Waunakee, WI  53597 
 
RE: Kwik Trip Store 1094 – Hwy Q and Peaceful Valley 
 
Dear Ms. Meinholz: 
 
This letter is intended to accompany the re submittal for our application to the Village of 
Waunakee for the requested Site Development Plan Review for our proposed development. 
Please accept this letter as our request to be placed on the May Planning & Zoning Commission 
Meeting Agenda as well as the City Council Meeting Agenda.   

Kwik Trip, Inc. is proposing the construction of a convenience store with an integral single bay 
carwash and a 10 dispenser fueling canopy. Included in the electronic submittal are the updated 
civil plans,  Building and Canopy Elevations, Signage Plans, renderings and the Storm Water 
Management Plan.  

Operations 
The requested hours of operation will be 24 hours for all uses.  The type of products that will be 
sold will be similar to that of our existing stores throughout the area:  fresh produce, bakery and 
dairy, hot and cold food and beverages, fresh meat and groceries, tobacco products, lotto, 
convenience store merchandise, alcohol, gasoline, diesel, E-85, ice and propane.  The outside 
merchandising of products is being requested next to the store (two ice chests and one propane 
cage) and underneath the proposed main canopy.  To ensure that the freshest products are sold 
in our stores, we request that daily deliveries be allowed. 
 
 

52 of 65



 

 
Buildings, Architecture and Site Design 
The architectural elements in this state-of-the-art building consist of a full brick cladding, 
standing seam metal roof, store front aluminum openings and stucco accents. Extensive 
landscaping, modern storm water facilities, monument and wall signage, customer and 
employee parking, concrete paving with curb and gutter are also included in the overall site 
design.  
 
Investment in the City 
This project will be a multi-million dollar investment in the Village of Waunakee. Not only in the 
physical improvements and development of a vacant parcel, but also an investment of 
approximately 25 to 30 new permanent jobs in the Village. The projected payroll here is 
estimated to be approximately $500,000 annually.   
 
Community Partner 
We pride ourselves in being an asset in the communities where we are located.  Families can 
walk or ride their bikes to our stores.  Retirees on fixed income can access fresh groceries like 
milk, eggs, bread and fruit just steps from their car.  We take pride in giving back to the 
communities we serve with charitable donations and by partnering with local non-profits. 
Kwik Trip would be happy to provide any additional information or answer any questions or 
concerns the Village of Waunakee may have with our submittal.  Please feel free to call or email 
with any questions you may have. 

 

Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bradford Fry, PE 
Store Engineering 
bfry@kwiktrip.com 
608 793 6414 
 

Bradford 
Fry, PE

Digitally signed by Bradford Fry, PE 
DN: cn=Bradford Fry, PE, o=Kwik 
Trip, Inc, ou=Senior Manager of 
Retail Construction, 
email=BFry@kwiktrip.com, c=US 
Date: 2020.04.22 14:30:59 -05'00'

53 of 65



54 of 65



55 of 65



56 of 65



57 of 65



58 of 65



59 of 65



60 of 65



61 of 65



62 of 65



63 of 65



64 of 65



65 of 65


	Agenda
	March 10, 2020
	Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of Certified Survey Map and Rezone from A-1 Agricultural Holding to C-1 Commercial for a Proposed Kwik Trip, at the northwest corner of Peaceful Valley Parkway and S. Century Avenue/CTH Q
	Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a request for approval of Site Plan, and Conditional Use Permit, Kwik Trip Inc., for a convenience store with fuel pumps and carwash, northwest corner of Peaceful Valley Pkwy. and S. Century Ave./CTH Q

